
INFORMAL SESSION MINUTES
January 28, 2013 1:00 p.m. Commissioners’ Office Conference Room

PRESENT: Commissioners Kathy George, Mary P. Stern, and Allen Springer.

Staff: Laura Tschabold, Chuck Vesper, Christian Boenisch, John Phelan, Bill Anderson,
Tonya Saunders, and Mike Green. 

Guests: Nathalie Hardy, News-Register; and Jody Christensen, GROW Yamhill County.

* indicates item forwarded to formal agenda

Kathy called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.

Revolving Loan Fund - Jody Christensen stated that one of the deliverables for the GROW
Yamhill County Project was to look at the county’s revolving loan fund, review the current loan
criteria, and make recommendations for improvement.  She said that the loan fund hasn’t been
accessed by local businesses in quite some time due to the outdated criteria.  She reviewed
background information, current limiting factors, and the changes recommended by the Council
of Governments (COG) (see Exhibit A).

Kathy said that she would prefer a shorter loan term than 120 months, although she would
be fine with an amortization schedule based on 120 months and a balloon payment due at the end
of the shorter loan term.  Allen agreed, suggesting a 4% interest rate for both startups and bigger
companies for a term of three to five years, which provides an incentive for early payback .  He
said that the Board could review the loan at the end of the term and decide to renew it at a higher
interest rate if appropriate.  Jody stated that COG is the technical expert and it was a laborious
process to get to this recommendation, but she would document the Board’s concerns and share
them with COG immediately.  Mary said that the Board would work with Laura to set a date for
COG to come and discuss the loan fund.  

Allen stated that if businesses really start using the loan fund, the Board might be able to
funnel more funds into it.  Jody stated that the next GROW meeting would be about video lottery
dollars, so she wants to make sure the group is aware of any concerns or commitments the Board
might have regarding those funds.  Mary stated that if state funds don’t come in for the county’s
match commitment on the bypass, video lottery dollars would be a potential source, and the Rails
with Trails project may also need some of the funds.  She said that establishing a granting
process for the video lottery dollars is the most important thing.

The meeting recessed at 2:13 p.m. and reconvened at 2:20 p.m.

* Personnel - Approve the change of status of Irma Del Rayo Saldana to bilingual Office
Specialist 2 in HHS Public Health, regular full-time, Range 7, Step 1, effective February 12,
2013.

MINUTES INFORMAL SESSION
Page 1 January 28, 2013 1:00 p.m. KG___MS___AS___



* Transit Funding - Approve the following §5310 Discretionary Grant Program allocations
for 2013-15, as recommended by the Special Transportation Fund (STF) Advisory Committee:

a.  Yamhill County Transit Area, $651,032 for general operations;
b.  Mid-Valley Rehabilitation, $20,644 for preventive maintenance;
c.  Abacus, $2064 for preventive maintenance;
d.  Oregon Mennonite Residential Services, $8256 for preventive maintenance.

Tonya Saunders presented the recommendation from the STF Committee.  Allen stated
that he had been present for the discussion and felt that it was a fair and equitable method of
allocating the funds.

Blue Sign Policy - The Board discussed the proposed policy and changes made since it was first
presented in the fall.  Kathy suggested that existing signs not meeting the new criteria be
removed and returned to the business owner along with a refund.  She said that this would avoid
discrimination issues and minimize sign clutter, which is one of the purposes of updating the
policy.  The Board agreed to make the effective date of the policy March 15, 2013, with the
annual renewal fee due each March 15.

Kathy stated that the Road Improvement Advisory Committee had expressed concern
about temporary sandwich boards.  John Phelan said that he isn’t concerned about those since
they’re typically only up for the weekend.  He stated that he may come to the Board in the future
with a loan request to jumpstart the kiosk program, rather than only doing one kiosk per year
with sign revenue.

Minutes - Mary moved approval of the following minutes.  The motion passed with Kathy and
Mary voting aye and Allen abstaining.

B.O. 13-56 - June 18, 2012, informal session
B.O. 13-57 - October 15, 2012, informal session

Mary moved to amend her motion to change the wording on the first page of the June 18
minutes, regarding the Veteran Services budget, to the original draft version.  The motion passed
with Kathy and Mary voting aye and Allen abstaining.

* See formal session agenda for formal session minutes to be adopted.

* Contracts/Grants - See agenda for details.

* Consideration of a salary increase for Mike Brandt, Planning Director.

Mary stated that Mike has refused a raise for many years and, despite accepting a 5%
increase last year, is still well below the comparable counties.  She said that with Mike’s 30+
years of planning experience and success in managing his budget and staff, he is looked at as a
resource by the state and by other counties.  She said that a 10% increase would get him close to
being in line with comparable counties.  She added that Mike also manages the Solid Waste
Division, which many other Planning Directors don’t, and he oversees two active landfills, so the

MINUTES INFORMAL SESSION
Page 2 January 28, 2013 1:00 p.m. KG___MS___AS___



county is getting a real bargain.

Kathy stated that Mike deals with many development issues that set precedent for the law,
and his leadership has made Yamhill County one of the best counties in the state for businesses
to work with.  She said that if Mike were to take a position somewhere else, Yamhill County
wouldn’t be able to hire someone of his quality for his current salary.  She said that he wouldn’t
accept the increase if he can’t afford it in his budget.  She said that Mike has operated a lean
budget and made cuts as needed, and proper remuneration is not adding to the bloating of
government.

Allen stated that he likes Mike, but it is difficult for him to support a 10% raise one year
after a 5% raise, given what’s happening in the private sector.  He said that he and the other
commissioners did not accept a raise for that reason, and he stands by those principles.  He said
that Mike will leave county employment at some point, and this is a great time to be head-
hunting because of the economy.  He stated that the individual is never more important than the
business, and there are a lot of great things about working for Yamhill County.

Kathy suggested coming up with some different options to discuss at the formal session
on Thursday.  The Board agreed to put the item on the non-consent agenda.

Surveyor Position - Mary stated that Rick Sanai hasn’t heard back from the Secretary of State’s
Office yet.  Allen said that he is disappointed with Dan Linscheid’s treatment of the
commissioners in leaving office, and he disagrees with several comments made in Dan’s letter of
resignation.  He said that Dan’s statement that the commissioners should honor the voters’ intent
is inconsistent with his previous request that the Board make an exception for him and waive the
term limits.  Mary stated that the commissioners felt comfortable waiving the term limits in this
case because the new law made the position an appointed one.  Allen agreed that the
commissioners did the right thing and said that he has nothing personal against Dan, but was
disappointed in his exit strategy.

The meeting recessed at 3:30 p.m. and reconvened at 3:40 p.m.

Investment Policy - The Board reviewed the draft policy presented by Mike Green and agreed to
have him submit it to the State Treasurer’s Office for review at its April 15 meeting.  Mike noted
that the county’s current policy restricts investments to a duration of 18 months or less, so the
county hasn’t been able to take full advantage of what the state allows.  He said that he expects
push-back from the state on a few of the policy changes, and will review the state’s comments
with the Board when he gets them.  He stated that the policy should be reviewed annually after
the end of each fiscal year.

Following commissioner updates, the meeting adjourned at 4:44 p.m.

Anne Britt
Secretary

MINUTES INFORMAL SESSION
Page 3 January 28, 2013 1:00 p.m. KG___MS___AS___


















